





A HISTORICAL STUDY
of the
HUROK-CLINTON METROPCLITAN AUTHORITY

Clifford ¥W. Senne






PREFACE

This thesis has been written io partial fulfillment of
the requirements for the degree of HKaster of Forestry. It -
is not intonded, to be a lengthy and detailed writinge-=such
a work would require many months of arduous effort, and would
be for an entirely different purpose.

i have been compslled to 0ai£ cerﬁain‘miner details be~
cause aleack of space or poverty of datae. For exaupie, there
ate & fow gaps in the chronolozy for sﬁichvpérisds no data
could be discovered. Then, too, there is little =materisl,
either published orvunpuhiiSEea,vcancaraing the Clinton River
valley; howaver, the Clianton is very similar to the Hurong and
probably would have a history almost iﬁaniicalvco thg letter |
if such a history had ever been writtens ‘

The account or narrative which I have presén%ed is justie
fied by the déta that were put at my disposal; these data are
accuratey I believey and I ha%e tried to tell the story of
the Huron=Clinton Ketropolitan Auzharity as simply and as in-
torestingly as possible. Yhenever I depart from facts, I
freely say so by using such words &s "probabiy"®, "guasées“,
and "eénjeeturgs"o '

For errors in this thesis I assume couplete resyonsi-
bility. But without the aid of friends, it wo.ld never have
come to fruition. Bocﬁor Henry S. Curtia of Ann sriwor, a
pioneer in the founding of the Huron=Clinton Hetropolitan

Authority, has wost generously given his tiuce and éésistanCa

.
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in offering advice and providing data on the beginning phases
of the projecte |

For his generosity in allowing me access to his unpubliseed
data and ldeas I am indebted to Professor H. O. Whittesmore, |
Chairman, Departuent of Landscape Design, Unliversity of Kiche=
igane Hrs. Alice He Kulchahey, assistant and Stenographer,
College of ﬁrchiﬁect&re and Design, University of ﬁichigaﬁ,‘;
also an interested friend of the Huron-Clinton project siuce
its veginning, has been extreusly cooperative and helpful by
ussembling much of the published and unpublished inforwation
on the project and making this material- wvailable to By |

To Professor Shirley W. 4llen, Professor of ?oreétry,
School of Forestry and Conservation, University of Hichigan,
I owe & debt of gratitude for encouraging me to write on
this subject, and for gulding me through the work from start
to finishe Finally I wish to ascknowledge the aid of varioua
wembers of the staff of the Huron-Llinton Hetropolitan Autherw
ity who have provided me with information which has not beenv
published to date. #r. Yan Buskirk, Engineer, provided me
with some information cuncerning present activitias; kr.
DeTurk, Bducational Director, very generously furnished me
with the many fine photographs wiick I have used to iiluse
trste this thesisg; kr. B. Savich, Art Draftsmen, was very
cooperative and helpful in providing se wiih the maps conw
tained herein. Without the efforts of these Authority men
and the others cited above, the writing of this thesis
would have been impcssib;a,

Clifford ¥. Senne

Ann arbor, Kichigan
Kay, 1948
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THTAODUCTION

The Huron-Clinton Hetropolitan Authority is a Jolnt
Commission, or Authority, for the five counties of Wayne,
Washtenaw, Livingaton, Oskiand, and Macomb, in south=
eastern Hichizan., This Authority represents the peocple
of those counties in planning, developing and ﬁainzaining
an adequate system of parks, parkﬁag&, playgrounds, bathe
ing beaches and other recreational features. The greater
part of this system will follow, and be built arocund, the
valleys of the Huron and Clinton rivers. Insofar as
possible, the garkwagé will probably parallel the rivers,
and connecting drives will branch out to parks and other
features of the system which are not located on the rivers.

The story of the beginnings of this orgsnization is
one of publicespiritedness, hard work, sacrifice, and sheser
determination. The Huron-(Clinton Hetropolitan Authority
did not spring Ainto being over night -« & few iadividusls
possessed of great imagination and imitlative dreamed,
plaﬁhed, and fostered the 1ldes through its infant stages.

The idea of such & project is not new; cooperating
counties in other states have set up similar authorities or
counissions for like purposes, Naw York, Boston, Chicago
and Cleveland to mention just a few, have madé tremendous

strides in metropolitan planning and development, and



recreational facilities have multiplied rapidly as ths result
of the creation and functioning of thesé agencies.

When coneidering recreation needs of the people the
nationally acecepted standerd is that there should be an acre
of park or play area for every hundred pesoples. The conﬂitian\i
existing before the creation of the Huron-Clinton Hetroe '
politan Authorivy was roughly as follows: Should population
trends in the'ﬁatropelztan distriét remain unchanged,and
acraagé in the district remalsn the same until 1950 or 1960,
there would be one acre for about every §,700 paoéle. Unvil
the eatsblishment of the Authority, the Detroit metropolitan
area was sbout the only densely populated ares in the
United States that had so little realiszed its recreational
needs, or if these needs were apparent, little or nothing had
been done to remedy the situaaien» ~' m

With the institution of The Huron-Clinton Matropolitan
Authority, the future looks bright for the recrsatlon-seekers
of the metropolitan district, and & well trained and efficlent
commizssion is now diligently working toward a better and more
pleasant 1life for all through adequeté and wholesome re-
creational facilities.
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THE RIVERS

Neither the Hurom nor the Clinten rivers are what could
be termed "spectacular® or "unusual®, They are both rather
placid streams for t he greater part of their extent,.and
they are typical of countless hundreds of unsung rivers that
may be found from Maine to Florida, west across the Great
Plains and throughout the western expanses of the United States.
As rivers go, these two streams are quite conservative and
steady in their habits and behavior. Their strongest flow
usually occurs during the months of March, April and May.
Floods or droughts are rare because of the stabilizing in-
Tluence of the many lakes with which the rivers are connected.
These lakes act as equalizing reservoirs, filling up to high
levels in winter and spring, but gradually giving out their
excess waters during the summer months.

There are mild differences of character of the rivers
as one proceeds from their sources to their‘moutha. In places

one may think he is looking at a mill pond, so still and

calm; at other places the rivers churn over rocks creating

rapids where ihere is & sharp drop in elevation. Lake Whittlesey,
a large glacial lake, now disappeared, created the flatlands |
that extend roughly from Utica to Ypsilanti and scutheastward

to what is now Laske St. Clair, the Detroit River and Lake Erie.
The lower reaches of the rivers that are included in this

area are slow moving, as though tired from their trip from

the uplands, Whittemore calls these variations in the



- rivers "phases" when he says,

The Huron River, in its course from Big Lake,
northwest of Pontiac, to the marshes of Lake Erie,
has three distinet phases, First, there is the
intermorainal basin which it drains from Big Lake
in the northeast to South Lske and Stockbridge in
the west. Here is a succession of lakes and
swamps, interspersed with gravel hills and outwash
rlains, between which the river, ever growing in
size, is mostly a deep snd placid stream, Here
one can cance without interruption, except for
small dams at Commerce and Milford, all the way
to Base Line Lake and Peach Hountain.

In the distance, glant morainal hills rise
above the skyline...... At Strawberry Lake begins
the delightful chain of lakes of the Lakeland
region through which the river flows. Strawberry,
Zukey, Bass, Whitewcod, lLoon, Base Line, Portage
and Little Portage lLakes are all in the chain
and afford unexcelled canoeing and resorting.

The gap between Peach MHountain and
University Observatory Hill, permits the Huron
to leave the lake country and enter its second
phase, that of a swift stream pouring over a
series of natural rocky rapids or old broken-
down mill dams. Here the valley is narrow and
deep, with steep hills or sharp wooded bluffs
on either side as it cuts direectly across the
general line of the moraines. From Base Line Lake
to Ypsilanti where it enters its third phase the
river drops 171 feet.ivuas

Below Ypailanti, the third phase takes the
form of a meandering stresm in a flat valley
between low bluffs--a depression through the
old glacisl lake bottoms. Again cuietly flowing,
with eontinuous curves, the river displays
beauty of a new type betwesen banks of tall
graceful lowland trees, even if less exciting
than its picturesque piunge from Base Line Lake

- to Ypsilanti. After many miles of seemingly
aimless wandering from side to side in its
shallow valley, it spreads out into the Lake Erie
flats and msrshes and loses itself in the great
lake'60..§ '



The Clinton, like the Huron, also has its three
phases: the lake swamp country of Oakland County,
weat and north of Pontiacj the swift falling stream
from Pontiac through Rochester to Utica; and a
slowly winding gourse from Utica to the flats of
Lake St. Clair.

When the Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authorityws still
only in the dream stage, Doctor Henry S. Curtls compiled a
book which was never published. This book was called the
"Huron Valley Guide,™ and it consisted of contributions from
many sources., It mskes very interesting and a bsorbing read-
ing, and the temptation to include, verbatim, one of the
more interesting parts is too great to resist. The part
whiech I have reference toc concerns the geology of the
Huron River, and was written by Frank Leverett of the
U. S. Geological Survey.

The story of the Huron is the tale of & young
and vagabond river that has wandered about over its
territory as few other rivers have ever done. It
was less thaa forty thousand years ago that the
stream took its rise at the edge of the ice cap
which then covered the state of Michigan except for
an irregular strip running up through the center of
the state to where the river has its source.

It followed its present channel as far as
Base Line Lake, but there it found its course to
the Southward blocked by the. ice sheet and turn-
ed westward, flowing across the present beds at
the Orand, Xalamagoo and St. Joseph Rivers to
discharge into the Eankakee and thence into the
Mississippi. As the stream was at this time fed
by glaciers on three sides which must have been
melting rapidly, it became a mighty river nearly
as large as the Ohio, as the shores of its old
channel indicate,

1. Harlow Olin Whittemore, "The Proposed Buron-Clinton
Parkway,"® The,ﬂichiian Alumnus Guarterly Review,
Vol. XLIV, No. 19, April 23, 1938,



As the ice melted to the gouth and east, the river
turned southward into its present channel and excavated
a wide valley to Dexter where it made a detour to the
south and east and reentered the pmesent valley below
Delhi, The western front of the glacier was now at
Ann Arbor leaving a ravine along Washtenaw Avenue.
This stream flowed where the Falrview Cemetary now stands,
made a sweep through the city by Ferry Field and entered
the Raisin and Lake Maumee at Tecumseh. From this lake
its waters escaped through the Fort Wayne outlet into
the Wabash and the Chio. R

As the ice continued to melt lLake Kaumee extended
northward along the face of the glacier beyond Ypsilanti
with a branch running uvp to Ann Arbor. Here the Huron
built a delta at the head of the estuary. The terrace
along the Ann Arbor Raéilroad west from the Pontiac
Road was made st this time. In Ypsilanti Lake Maumee
« formed the bar on which the water tower now stands with
its beach running through Highland Cemetary.

- Lake Maumee ultimately extended northward around
the Thumb into the Saginaw Valley. From thence its waters
were discharged through the Grand River Valley and
connections into Lake Chicago, which was the lower end
of what is now Lake HMichigan, thence the waters of the
Huron found their way again into the Mississippi.

The large lake of the Erie Basin, Lake Whittlesey,
now covered the lower reaches at the ﬁuren and formed
a strong beach just below Ypsilanti with a delta ex-
tending up through the present site of the city, form-
ing the terrace on which the business section west of
the river stands.

As the ice malted from the Erie basin and the waters
flowed eastward, the mouth of the Huron moved eastward
with the receding waters forming a series of deltas from
Belleville down to and into the lake. The water now
found escape through Lake Erie eaut along the Ontario
ice cap by Syracuse and down the Mohawk and the Hudson
to the Atlsntic. The outlet from Lake Erie must have
been lower then than now,for the waters were drawn down
to a much lower level than the present, and the Huron
built a delta many miles out into Lake Erie.

About eighteen thousand years ago, it is estimated,
the ice was so far melted out of the Ontario basin that
the waters began to flow over Niagara Fells and down the
3t. Lawrence,



The Huron has thus in succession discharged its
waters into the Kankakee, the Wabzsh, the Grand, into
Lake Erie and the Hudson, and intoc the Gulf of
St., Laurence.

The only rock arterys in the bed or bluff of the
river are in the vicinity of Flat Rock and Rockwood,
near the wouth. In places the rive{ is at a level of
150 to 200 feat sbove its rock bed.

1Frank Leverett, U. 5. Geological Survey, "Story of

the Huron River”, "Huron Valley Guide,™ unpublished
manuscript, School of Architecture and Design Library,
- University of Michigan.









INDIANS OF THE FIVE COUNTY AREA

At one time the Huron, or Wyandotte, Indians had a
temporary reservation on the Huron at & peint about fouf -~
miles west of Flat Rock. It was from this tribe that the
Huron river derived its name. The Wyandottes were of
Iroquois stock, and their villages on the Huron were spread
along the river as far as Ypsilanti,

In the Huron River Park west of Flat Rock there is a
stone monument marking the site of the reservation mentioned
above. This monument is in the form of a wigwam and bears
the following 1nacriptien:

"In memory of Chi¢f Quoqua, a ¥Wyandotte.

This monument marks the last reservation

of the ¥Wyandotte Indians

Occupied 1818 to 1842°% _
Archaeologiats have identified as many as ten Indian villages,
about the sawme number of burial places, and five ancient |
mounds, in areas along, and adjacent to the river, These
sites have been located on archaeclogieal maps, but it is
doubtful if they can be noticed now by a casual observer.
Archaeologists are now engaged in sttempting to piece to-
‘gether the relationships, cultural and otherwise, of the
various tribe; that occupied this area before the advent of
the white man. A culture which has been called the Glacial
Kame Culture by archaeclogists, existed in the generel |
reglon of Southern Michigan, Nerthwesterm Ohio, and North-

eastern Indiana, and the Indians here during historic time



may have been descendents of this ancient focus. This
culture is estimated to have lasted from about 800 AD te
1000 AD, this time period being known as Burial Mound I;

Another ancient culture which flourished in this
general area f{rom about 900 AD to 1300 AD was the Hopewell
Culture. 3Southern Chic wes the center of this culture,
but subsidiary centers existeé in Michigan, Pennsylvanis,
New York, Indiana, Illinois and Wisconsin. It is also
gquite poasible that the Indian tribes in the Michigan
area during historic time were descended from early
Hopewell Culture.

During the historical period the Huron Velley was
occupied by various Algongquin tribes at different times.
Among these tribes were the Wyandottes; Potosatomio; Sauk,
Hiami; Ottawa, dhippeua and Mascoutens. However, during
Pontisac's campaign arocund Detroit thls area was held;
temporarily, by his allies from the western tribes, About
the time that the first accounts of this part of the state
were being written the Savk, Miami, and Mascoutens disap~
peared from the valley.

¥Many of ocur fine highways and less important roads
in Michigan closely follow old Indian trails. These trails

were sometimes'very 1ohg, and extended in several directions
from central points or strategic locations. At one time
there was a trail from Lake Erie to Dexter, following the
banks of the Huron, and from Dexter this trail extended on

westward. reer the War of 1812 the Sawk Indians received

-~



annual stipends from the British government for their
services dﬁring the war, and ln order for this tribe to
collect their rewards it was necessary for them to
travel from their villages in s&uthwastern Michigan,
northern Iﬁdiana; and Illinois to Fort Malden on the
Detroit River. The tfail fellowed by those Indians be=
came known as the old Sauk trail and lster became the
Chicago Turnpike, which is now known as U. S, Highwey 112,
The Sawk trail crosses the Huron at Ypsilanti, and three
other trails converged at the ford where Ann Arbor now
stands.

¥uch of the Indians! trével wzs done by water.
The Light birch bark ¢anoes could traverse many-streams
‘and tributaries to points which are now inaccessible
by such means. In discussing water travel,Biﬁsdale
states:

- ¥hen the season permitted, pirogues crossed
the Lower Peninsula without unloading by way of the
Huron, Little Portage and River, and the swamp waters
of the Grand River and down to iake Michigane.

During earlier times the Clinton river was also
called the Huron, and the two rivers, with the exten-
sively used portage between their headwaters, could

almost be considered a single stream. However, so much

lw, B, Hinsdale, "The Indisns of the Valley,"
Huron Valley Guide, unpublished manuseript, School
of Architecture and Design library, University of Michigan.
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confusion resulted from the location of eastern claims
that in 1824 the northern river was named Clinton River
by an act of the‘legislat.ure-.
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THE E:RLY SETTLZMEKRTS ALORG- THE HURCN RIVER

Befors the ccaiég of the white wman, the main route
uged by the Indians in getting from Lake Erie to Lake
Hieﬁigan,was by way of the Huron as far as Portage lake,
a portage of about three miles to the Orand River, and -
then down the Grand Hiver to Lake Michigan. Later, many
voyageurs, trappers, settlers and other white men used
the same route extensively.

For more than one hundred years Detroit was the only
settlement of any consequence in this part of Michigan,
and it was from this point that most of the early settlers
began their westward trek. Many of these pioneers first
want overland via a trail cut through the forest from
Detroit to Ipsilanti. From here travel was lafgely by
water, the route described above being the most populsr,
if not the only logical one.

The river served the early settlers not unly as a
means of trével, but it also furnished power tc run the
grist mills, saw wills, and later on, the paper mills and
woolen mills thst éprang up at intervals slong the stream.
Thus the river had much to do with the establishment of
most of the early settlements along its banks. Dams were
usually bulilt where & head of water could be built up
to turn the water wheeis, and the tribustries at thelr

wouths were the most economical places to erect such workse

RN
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Small settlements grew up around those dam sites, and
eventually developed into thriving towns., Dexter, Ann
Arbor, Ypsilantl, Bellevills, Flat Rock and Rookwood
were loocated also at the orossing of Indian trails.

The rallroads later determined where the main growth
of industry and populetion would be, but they had noth-
ing to do with the early settlements, as the first raliroad
here was constructed in 1838, some years after the towns
had been sattled. These settlements alaso existed before
the coming of the main Detrolt-Chicago highways. The
rivar; on the other hand, was determinative in the looca-
tion of the rallroad. 1Instead of taking the shorter
rouﬁe through Ypsilanti, Seline and Coldwater, the rail-
road followed the easier grade of the Huron from Ypsilanti
to Dexter and thence bsyon& the valley to Jaokson*l This,
together with a north and sonth'railnﬁig,-and the estaeb-
lishment of the ocounty sseat here, gava_ﬁnn Arhor s head-
start in becoming the grestest cenﬁér of population and
industry in the Huron Valley.

Beglnaing at the mouth of the Huron, a brief look
will be tsken at the early settlements, proceeding up-
stresm 1n order. Silver Creek is at the mouth of the
river, and is the letest of the settlements,

Hext is Hockwood, one of the cldest towns in the
valley. This town was settled soon after 1812, and in
its earlier days it had & large sawmill. aAn old north
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and south ﬁaﬂ, mntaall:r becsme what is now U.8. highway
56, and two rallways betweea Detroit and Toledo oross the
stresm at this point. |

Flat Book at differeat times has been called Vreelena,
8mooth Rook, and RBrownstone. Its present neme ia derived
from the ohsracter of the river bed here. Flat Rock was
probably the oldest settlement in the valley, but records
are not slways rellable. an old history mentions the
village in connection with the battle of Brownstone in
1.-8_,12._,. another spsaks of the villaege of Vreeland, founded
in 1017, while purton} gives 1828 as the date of ite
founding. A good guess is that Burton meant that the towm
has besn known as Flat Rook sinae the date essigned by him.
_ About six miles upstroam is New Boston, & town which
was u;etlod in 1842. It is & tosn of about 500 people
{about 1940), and is unincorporated. Gince sarllest deys
it has had good water pomer for e grist amlll, and the
Pere-Marquette rellroad links it with Plymouath on the
aorth and Toledo on %he south.

In 1834 Bellsvillie waes Bettled, end since 1881 when
the Wabash rallroad was built the town has grown consider-
ably. 'Rmmoari_na was one of the settlaments am;ogaa
around e damsite. It began in 1828 and still farnilshes
pleasant M &e a Tew occoupants of the houses which re-
main after the dam has moved end industry has migrsted to
other centers.

1l oarence Hoaroe Barton 1853-1932, Looal nistorien.
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Firet among the up-river towns to be settled wss
Ypsilanti, In 1809 an Indilan treding post was estabdlished
at the present 3ite of the Detroit RBdlison Jompany. This
post was established by Golonel (abriel Godfrey, snd wes
located along the Potawatomie Trail, The first houss was
built here in 1823, and at that time the place was ealled
Woodruff's Grove; this site was adout & mile downstreanm
from the resent oity. When the Doﬁraiﬁ«ﬁnicasn’rnrnpik.

- was built in 1825 the town moved to 1ts present site.

© Judge Woodward founded the town, and named it after
Demetrius Ypsilanti, a Gresk Gensral, who had just then been
attaiging rencwn by his ailitéry viotories agalnst Turkey.
Ypsilantl grew fast; in 1826 a 4istillery bscane e#stablished
there, and this was fTollowed by a saw mill bﬂilﬁ by John
Stewart. TPwo years later other forerunners of a loang line
of Ypeilanti faotories were established., aAmong thoss wore
the Hardy and Heading Flour mill and the Mark Norris woolen
mill. Leter on, by 1876 the Corawell Paper Mill was added,
and the preseat Peminsula M1ll dates from 1867, |
Ann Arbor was settled in 1824 by Join Allen and Klisha
Ramsey. These settlers arrived hers on Pedruary 6 of that
yesr after a long trip overland ca acrseback. They settled
on Allen's Oresk, a short distance awsy fram the river,
and here they bduilt a dam to furanlsh =mater power for & grist
aill and saw mill. The two Anns, the wives of thesze
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ploneers followed a 1it$lo later, end it was the grape
arbor mainteined by these two women that suggested the
town's name, Anns' Arbor, latser shorteaned Lo asnn Arbor.
By Mey 25, 1824 the ploneers werse selling 1‘"{"’" from the
first map of Upper Ann Arbor and by 1832 Lower aAnn Arbor
had been plotied, with its ambitious SBrosdway, Well Street
and Maiden Lene. Two city blosks wers reserved, one for
a ccurt house uad ancther for s :m. The {irst oounty
Julge was Judge Dexter - he took office in 1826, and in
1829 he purchased the first paper, the Westera mﬁa@,
whioh had dsen started by Thowmas Slapasocn. ,

. ¥he town of Dexter was founded in 1824 by Judge Dexter,
and he laid out the tosn with streets anlnety feet wide,
Els large manslon soon bhooume femous for its soolnl and
political gstheringe, and the twaaly-two room sbruatm
still stends., Por some unkoown reascn Judge Dexter
lonatei the county sest, aot 1in Dexter, bual in Ann Arbdbor
and ia%cr he purchased ;Largé tracts of lend (rom the Indimns,
The Judge also becews prominesat, notl oniy ias the develop-
sent of Washteanaw County, but ia places as reaoits as
Saginaw, Judge Mér established his own post office in
Pexter in 1826, and arranged for weekly asil delivery from
Ann Arbor. He then started two saw mills, one on Mill Creek
and, in partnershlp with Isaac Pomerocy, anocther on ths site
of the present Dover Milis. Later, he became interested
in several grist mills,
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All of these selilements grew out of the great
western migratlion walsu begaan shortly after the close of
the Revolultionary war, and eoatinued until the 1890°'s.
Some of the settlers pushed on farther westward, bat
ethcri eiaose to remain in the valley and settle the
towns desoribed above, The locaticn of these settlements
wes largely determined by Indian trails and the river,
but when the ralilroads and highways came later, these
latter trausportation facoilities decided which towns
should thrive and prosper, and which should wither and
die,

The river from Kilford to Dexter was not in the line
of movement, and the sstilement of this part of the valley
is ancther story. However, it was water power that led
to the selection of the site of Milford at the junotion
of Pettibone Cresk with the Horon. A8 sarly &s 1832 a
saw mill bad been ervoted here, followed by a gis-t aill
in 1836.



Part II
AD 1935 —==w AD 1948
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1936

Perhaps many peopls in the metropollitan distriost of
Detroit had long before this tiss thought of doing some~
thing to improve thalr recreational faeilities. Notaing
constructive had been dons, howaver, slong these lives
othar than the establishzment of a few soattered parks
that were inadeguate for the needs of the arsa’s tre-
mendous populstion.

Tha first reported steps toward Hthe creation of the
Huron~Clinton Hetropolitan Authority were sade io Ann Arbdor.
During the year local river isproveameént commlasions eand
other civic-minded groups of people begen thinking about
and working on, problems directly related Lo the Huron River
Yalley. ERiver pollation was cne of the most argent problems |
thet had to be solved. BScwegs &isposel and dumping of trash
into the river and along its banks menaced the well belng
of all who used the river. Fish snd wildlifs habitats ware
being destroyed; limproper laa& use arested srosion probleas;
sesthetic values of the river va.ilsy wore deolining, because
of the unsightly fiy~by-night shanties that dotted the shores
of the river, each shaunty having its satellite trash heap.
For anyone using the river, these conditions must huve oreated
an extremely 4istesteful effect, snd a few desided Lo QO
something to right. the wrongs that had besn done to She river,
its ulicy. its fiora and fauna,



19

Two of the leading pioneers in improving the Huron River
were Doctor Heary 8. Curtis, and rrofessor Harlow 0. Whittemore,
both of Ana Arbor. These men envisioned a beasutiful river
velley, rioh in oharm, with the river aparkling and ocleaa, its
banks clothed in verdure, and parks doiting its shores for tgg
benefit and pleaéure of all, They saw inviting parkways
beckoning to the motorist and invitiag him to expldre the
beautles of the valley; they saw briﬂle paths, hiking treils,
old historic sites restored, caence routes; they alac dreamed
of game refuges and bird sanctuariss established and main-
tained in this:system ~- these and many other features would
they include if it wers only within thesir power to do =so,

But how could all of thase thiags bs done?

Perhaps Dr. Ourtis sterted the bsll rolling when, 4in
this year, he began mexing inqalries eoaneraiag the ways and
maana,of organizing and eatablishing park districis. He
nrctaAto other cities and asked for informatioa and edvice
concerning astatutes, methods of prooedure in organizing
metropolitan districts, etc. These inquirles were all met
with a fine spirit of coopsration, and help was generously
glven by the park diszriatg that had been caavessed by |
Dr. Curtis., Little else of importance was acoomplished

un?il 1937.
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1937

From January to Hhrch thers probably was not much
activity directed toward improving the Huron valley, but
on March 5, 1937 a meeting, which proved to be very im-
portant in the history of the Hurcn<Clinton Metropolitan
suthority; was held in Ann Arbor.

This meeting, or conference, was held under the auspices
of the Huron Valley Improvement Commission and the Washtenaw
Ceunty Road Commission in cooperation with the Extension
Service of the University of ﬁieh;gan; the purpose of the
conference was"to stimulate a movement which would realize
some of the possibilities of this beautiful valley."l
| - During morning and afternocon sessions a dist%nguiahed group
of men, prominent in political, social and industrial fields
in and around the Detroit metropelitan area delivered ad-
dressé§ and carried on what must have been veiy spirited
discussions. These sddresses and discussions were all aimed
at a thorough "face-lifting" for the valley, including
formlation of an overall plan for coordinated use of the
seenic, water, wildlife, forest, and other recreational re-
 sources of the valley. Other projécts included the proposal
that a valley guide for the use of tourists be published
(such a guide was compiled later, but never published), and
‘a proposal that the 3tato adopt a modern water code applicable

to the Huron River.

1-”Iaproving the Huron Valley®™, Planning and Civic Comment,
Janusry-March 1937
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The Ann Arbor Conference was attended by sighty delegates.
ineluding faculty members of the University of Michigan,
officials of the Detroit Edison Compuny, Hiéhigan Central
Railroad, the State Conservation Department, and a repre-~
‘sentative of Govenor Frank Murphy. The conference was pre-
sided over by Profeamsor Edwin C. Goddard of the University
of Michigan, and speakers included Arthur We Stace, editor,
Ann Arbor Daily News; Willism C. Hoad, Professor of Sanitary
and Municipal Engineering; University of Michigan; Henry E.
Rigga; Honorary Curator of the Transportation Library,
University of Michigan; Henry M. Bates, Dean, Law School,
University of Michigan; Kenneth L. Ballenbeck; Superiatendenz;

Washtenaw County Road Commission; Henry S. Curtié, in charge
Qf Huron Valley Recresatiocnal Survey; Harold D. Smith, Diractar;
Michigan Municipal Lesgue.

As a result of this conference the following resoclutions

were adopted:

l. That the Commission on Highways and Park Trustees
in each of the counties, the State Highway Commissioner, and
the mayors of the municipalities involved, be asked to in-
prove, so far as possible, the sections of the valley within
their jurisdiction, and to cooperate with each other in
providing a loop parkway through the Huron and Clinton valleys.

2. That the 3tate Department of Conservation be asked
to cooperate in msking the Huron a model valley through the
full development of the plant, animal, scenic, and other
resources that come within the range of its responsibilities.

3. That the Governor be asked to arrange, either through
the State Planning Commission or a specially appointed
Commission, for the preparaztion for consideraticn by the
Legislature of & water code adapted to modern c¢onditions and
geaigned to assure the best possible use of the waters of the
tate,

L, That the State Planning Commission be asked to
recognize the unit development of individusl river valleys
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as an important element in land-use planning, and to cooperats
%plgvery way practicable in the development of the Huron
alley.

- 5, That the cities of Ypsilanti and Flat Rock be urged
to provide sanitary sewage disposal at the earliest possible
moment . : T

6. That the members of the conference be requested to
report back to the organizations which they represent on the .
proceedings and recommendations of the conference, and to
urge thelr cooperation in the carrying out of these recom-
mendations.

7+ That the chairman of the conference be requested to
appoint at this time & Huron Valley Committee of seven members,
with power to effect such subsequent changes in composition
or number as may seem to them wise, for the purpose of fore
mulating and forwarding the execution of a coordinated plan
for the development, improvement, and utilization of the
resourcea of the vailey in the best interests, both of their
owners and the general publie, _

Shortly after the Amn Arbor Conference the Huron Valley
Committee (sometimes called Huron Valley Assoclation) was
appointed as recommended at the conference, and the following
members took office: Henry E. Riggs, Chairméﬁ, Ann Arbor;
George C, Handy, Ypsilanti; B, L. Foresman, Pontiac; Henry B.
Barhart, Ann Arbor; Edward K. Hines, Detroit; James Inglis,
Ann Arbor; Mrs. Ruth Huston-whipple, Plymouth; J. S. Gray,
Monroe; A, C. Marshall, Detroit; Harry L. Pierson, Detroit.

At last some organization and planning was beginning to becoms
evident, and the Huron-Clinton project started to move.

At a meeting of the newly-asppointed Huron Valley Committee

in June of this year the project was thoroughly discusﬁﬁﬁ;
after much discussion and exchange of ideas it was finally

- decided that this should be not jJust a Washtenaw County project
since the Huron flows through, or along Oakland, Livingston,
Washtenaw, Wayne, and Monroe Counties. Furthermore it was
suggested that the Clinton Valley should be included with

the Huron Valley project. Both of those rivers flow through .
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several counties, and use éonstantly disregards artificial
boundaries; therefore it is wise that such a suggestion be
made, since it would be wasteful to concentrate improvements
on certain portions of the valleys, while disregarding other
portions of the valleys or stretches of the rivers.

A little later on, in ARugust of this year, the committes
met again, this time at Plymouth, and with the discussion of
the previocus meeting in mind, the Committee adopted the name
of Huron-Clinton Parkway Committee. |

At the August meeting of the Committee, a budget of
$5,000 to finance the various actibities of the group, was
approved, ¥r. Harry B. Earhart of Ann Arbor took it upon
himself to underwrite this budget, and it might be of interest
to mention the fact that all of the moneys used in financing
the Committee's activities were obtained from contributions
of members of the commitﬁea, and f§0m donations of other in-
terested parties. Rone of these contributors expected any
return for the money expended by them in promoting the es~
tsblishment of a metropolitan authority.

During the remainder of this year the Committee further
publicized what they were trying to do by providing speakers
who were well versed in the propesed project. Among some of
the eerlier speakers were Edwin C. Goddard (now deceased),
Professor Emeritus of the Law School, University of Michigan,
Professor H. G. Whittemore, of the School of Architecture
and Design, University of Michigan, and Mrs. Ruth Huston-
¥hiprle, member of the City Commission, City of Plymouth.
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In addition to these, there was also Doctor Curtis, who
perhaps did more speaking and missionary work for the
Committee than all others combined. These speakers were
availeble to communities and organizations all over the
five-county area, and even beyond, for the purpose of'
explaining and propagandizing the proposed Huron-Clinton
Metropolitan Authority. -

Newspaper pubiicity is probsbly the most important means

. of enlightening the genersl public on any matters; the
1+ Committee was cognlzant of this fact all throughout its

period of promotional ‘activity, and used the papers at every
opportunity for the dissegination of any news or propa-

 ganda that would help the cause,

During this year a recreational survey of the Metropolitan

- District was made by the National Park Service, as & part of

its state~wide survey, and this study revealed an area sadly
lecking in psrk and recrestional facilities. Other projects
were simultaneouslr gotten underway, including a local
study by the University of Mjchigan, and a Federal W. F.A,
Writsrs Project having to do with the proposed park and
recreation system.

Towerd the close of the year a very important meeting
was held in Detroit, and this meeting might well have been
called "The Meeting of the Minds®, since the majority of the

- men in attendance wsre representatives of organizations that
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would be working in cooperation with each other throughout
the five~county district, should the proposed project
become a reality.

The purpose of this mesting was to assemble planners
and englineers who were familiar with recreationsl planning
problems of the Detroit metropolitan area; a second ohjective
of the meeting was to set up a clearing house for informstion
from counties, cities, and semi-public groups relating to
recreational plans for certain aress already being considered,
and potential areas that should be in public ownership for
parks, parkways and recreational areas. A third, and
pessibly the most important purpose of the meeting, was to
- explore the possibility of a regionsl planning program which
would coordinate and support the excellent work in planning
which was being done by verious public and semi-public
agencies,

Among those taking part in the meeting were the
following:
Pref. B, O. ¥hittemore, University of Hichigan ~
¥r., J, M. Bennett, Forester, Wayne County Road Commission
¥r, Charles Boehler, State barks Division, Conservation Dept.
M, W. Cox, Bagineer, St. Clair County Rosd Commission
Mr. El11 A. Gallup, Ann Arbor Parks Department
¥r. Leon lLuke, Supsrintendent, Macomb County Hoad Commission
Mr. Wilbur Hbéehee, Detroit City Planning Commission
Mr, Arthur Messer, Forester, Oskland County Rosd Commission
Prof. George G. Ross, Dept. of Landscape Design, U. of Mich.
Mr. Herbert Russell, Secretary, City Planning Commission
¥r, W, I. Slavens, Superintendent, Livingston County Road Com.
Mr, Fred Taylor, éigbuay Planning Survey, State Highway Dept.
Mr. Barl G. VanStorch, State Planning Commission, Lansing.
Mr. Hallenbeck, Engineer, Washtenaw County Road Commission

¥r. C. DeForest Platt, State Supervisor, Recreation Study,
Rational Park Service

9
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The meeting brought out much spirited discussion; each

- of the aFore listed representatives presented prable#s and
recommendations, énd outlined pléns of their organizatiocns.
'Akll were strongly behind the idea of a Fetropolitan Authoriﬁf}
': especially Mr. Boehler, who stated that the Conservation

| Dop&rtnaat was in hearty aceord with regionsl planniﬁg iﬁ
thi# area bscsuse of the Daparimant's specialized problems
‘due to large concentrations of population,.

Professor Whittemore outlined in detail plens of the
Huron Valley Improvement Association, and he féeit that this
same promotional organization would actively support a _
réégcnal program just as strongly as a program solely for |
the Huron River valley..
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1938

As a result of the Ann Arbor Conference in March of
1937 the Huron-Clinton Parkway Committee was formed, and
this committee began their activities for 1938 at a meet-
ing held in Ann Arbor on January 20, 1938, Various sub-
committees were organized to cover all fields of action,
sach as engineering, fish life, land acquisition, legis-
lation, natural resources, parkways, wildlife, stc.; other
subcomnittees were formed for such public relations
sctivities as publieity; state, counfy, and mmnicipal
relations; women's interests, etc. General policies and
programs were outlined to serve as a guide for the
activities of the various committees and subcommittees,
and these committees were instructed to begin surveys,
or collection and analysis of basic fiacts pertinent to the
project. Mr. Harry B. Barhart was elected Chairman of the
General Committee at this meeting.

This year was devoted largely to investigations and
fact-finding by the committees described above, and at
periodical meetings of the Huron-Clinton Parkway Committee,
reports of progress were made and then discussed.

A regular series of radio broadcasts were made throughe
out the months of January, February, and March, by speakers
froﬁ the Parkway Committes, including Doccér Curtis,

Professor Whittemore, Professor McMurry, Geography Department,
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University of Hiehig&n; Semuel T. Dana, Dean, Schocl of
Forestryad Conservation, University of Michigan, and
Professor Lee R. Schoenman.

During the year appeals were sent out to Henry Ford,‘\‘\~
The Michigan Central Railroad, and the Detroit Edison
Corpany, requesting their cooperation in improving and
beautifying their river front holdings. These appeals
were met with favorable response by these industrial land-
owWners. A

The Goﬁéariation Department cbnducted a fish survey,
1nvastigaﬁing fish populstions, distribution, food specles,
habitat, etec; and during this year 278 miles of the Huron
and its tributaéies was completed. A survey of water
resources was also conducted by the National. Resources Board.

In July Doctor Curtis made a trip to New quk, Boston,
and Cleveland to inspect the park and:éecreational facili-
ties in these cities. He gathered mucb'valugble information
and many ideas‘which could be used in planning for the
Detroit metropoclitan area.

The Governor met the Committee and, at its request, he
promised his cooperation with the Committee in securing the
allocation of $20,000 by the Emergencj Appropriation come-
mittee for the Conservation Department to make a survey of
existing recreational facilities within the Detroit metro=-
géolitan area. The Governor, at the time, expressed deep
interest in the project, and said that he would immediately

I}
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order the Conservation Department to undertake the survey
at once, Completion of the survey and plan would be
financed by the proposed allocation of funds mentioned
above.

The Hurcn-Clinh»&arkgggzgggzz up the year’s program at
a meeting held at the Detroit Club on_Daceaber 12. At this
meeting four additional subeommittéas were appointed for the
purpose of specisl studies that the Geﬁ%al Committee wanted
made, These committees were appointed to obtain all of the
information possible about Lske St. Clair, the Detroit
River; Gaunty cooperation, and parks and plsygrounds.

In an effort to cut red tape and save time, Professor
Goddard at the final meeting, recommended that the General
Committee seek a special aet of the State Legislature creatw
ing a Metréyolitan Distriet around Detroit instead of
waiting for the creation of such a district by a popular
referendum vote, This recommendation was probably shelved,
declared unconstitutional, or rejected for some other %eason,

gince no further gction was tzken along the lines of the

recommendation.
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1939

The fourth yesr of activity of the'groap promoting the
Netropolitan Authority began with ancther meeting of the -
Huron~Clinton Parkway Committese. This was on January 19,
and at this time & bill creating s Huron-Clinton Metro-
politan &uﬂharity was made up and approved. Frofessor
Goddard, Cheirman of the Lﬁgiél&tiva subcommittes was given
oredit for a fiaé legal concepiion, and it was then decided
to have Sanitor MecCallum, of Aan Arbop, introduce the bill
in the State Senate at the uext session of the Legislature,
Coples of this bill were then sent to sll of the mayors in
Wayne county for thelr expressions of opinion. #ost of the
reports recelved in rsturn wers favorable with the exception
of Detroit and Highland Park. 4 coanjecture ﬁare is that
these two oitles thought that they would have to carry too
largs a portion of the fianancial burden gonnected with the
ayyrseion of suoch a projeot. Their objections, if for sach
a reason, were sound, but on the-other pand, thelr populations
were muoh lerger than thosﬁAor municlpalities which would
shoulder less of the financial load.

The enabling act, or Senate Earolled Aot No, 75, was
introduced by Senstor MoCaellum at the regular session of
the 60th lLegislature, and the Act was passed in June. This
act was the finsl stép in the first phase of the work to
establish a parkway-playground area in the valleys of the
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Huron and Clinton Rivers., Under the aet‘;ha Authority was
empowared to build and coastruct parks, parkways, end con-
necting express highways in the five-county distrioct. It
enabled thls new ageacy to eooperate with eiisting agonoles
in planning and completing reoreational areas anywhere in
the district, and even to extend beyond the district. The
Act also geve the Authority the power to issus revenue bhonds;
accept deeds of gift; coademn property for such purposes;
and it provided for a maxizum of one-guarter mill tax levied
in the five-county area as a working and planning fund.
There was ons stipulation, howsyer, which kept the Authority
from sterting work immedistely, The Enabling Aot required
& retifying vote of the peoples in the five countles cen#
cernsd, and such a vote would not be made until the election
in the Fall of 1940. This situalion gave the sponsoring
group ample time to stage an effestive sazpaign for the
preject before the voters weant to the polls, and the Parkway
Committee members, bolstaréd by the progress that hsd been
made, set to work with a will once again. They gave freely
of their time and money; they talked with groups all over
the Dotrolt metropolitan arsa; they delivered radio addrbaacs;
asirculated petitions and circulara; and appesled to one and
all to help their cause, Now that thelr dresms were about
to bs realized, they spsred notihlng in attemgtidg to sucess-

fully finish what they had set out to do years before. The
results of a Gallup Poll taken in December showed that the
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goamitites &ad indeed been quite succesaful with their
propagends. The poll, taken in the Metropolitan Bistriet)
reported that 33% of the people were aequainted with the
project, agﬁ mogt of these people wers in favor of it.

Goling back to the summer of this yeer, the éétivitias
of the Parkway Commitise were mostlé of the same ﬁatdre as
preceding years--informal talks and lectures were made ba-
fore such groups &8 Rotary and Klwanis éluba, schools,
garden clubs, eto. Hewspaper publicity reached an sll-time
high, thanks to the efforts of ¥r, George C. Handy, of the
Ipsilanti Press; Mr. Arthur Stace, of the Ann Arbor News;
and other sympathetic newsmen tihroughout the area.

During the summer e group of representatives from ths
promotional body made 8 three day trip to Rew York to lo-
apeot that oity's metropoliten park system. Much food for
thought was available there, and the group reau;ned to
Michigan richsr in the knowledge of what a well-planned and
leid~out recreational system should eacompass. (ther trips
of a similar character were also zude to the metropolitan
distriets of Clevelsnd, Chicago, and x¥ilwaukes; on the
Chicago-Milwaukes trip Dunes Stete Park, in Indlans, was
included in the itinerary. As the inspeoting parties
returned from these tours, the genersl publioc was mede more
aware through newspaper reports of how lacking the Detroit
ﬂttropolitan grea was in recreational fscilities as compared
with the other clties,
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1940

This was the year of the vital referendum vote which
would decide the fate of the Huron«Clinton Hetropolitan
Authority; determined that victory should not elude them,
the Huron~Clinton Parkway Committee redoubled its efforts
in behslf of what had, to them now, become practically a
crusades, One of the first steps they took to strengthen
their opportunities for a favorable vote, was the hiring
of s competent campaign manager. This course of action
was decided upon st a January meeting of the Committes,
and at this same meeting the sponsoring group even stooped
to appeasement in the form of changing its name from Hurone
Clinton Parkway Committee to Detroit-Huron-Clinton Park
and Parkway Association. This was done to make the pro-
ject more acceptable to Detroit and ¥Wayne County. If
the five counties; or any two adjacent counties should
vote favorably for the project, a metropolitan district
would be established over those counties that voted in favor
of the Authority. The Committee was very desirocus of
swaying the Wayne county, especially Detroit, vote in a
favorable manner, sc no possible means of persuasion was
overlooked.

During the early part of this year Doctor Curtis spoke
in 57 high schools in the five counties, explaining the
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advantages of the parkway project to students and teachers
~alike. At the conclusion of this speaking tour a high

school essay contest was sponsored, with cdsh prizes being

- awarded for the best essays concerned with the Huron—ciintnn\_

HMetropolitan Authority. Winning essays were also published ‘
in most of the newspapers of the metropolitan area, and thus
the attitudes of the younger element were added to the ever-
swelling promotional publieity. About 5,000 students sub-
mitted essays which they wrote as part of their required
work for Civies and Egglish courses.

In the spting, The Detroit«Huron-Clinton Park and Park-
way Assoclation became incorporated, snd the following members
were unanimously elected as trustees:

Harry B. Earhart, Head of Earhart Foundation,
former President of Dodge Motor Cosmpany.

Howard B. Bloomer, Donor of many State Parks
Béwin C. Goddsrd, Emeritus Professor of Law,
University of Hichigan.

James Inglis, Chaifman of Board, National City
Bank, Detroit. ,

Leroy Smith, Wayne County Highway Engineer

Henry E. Riggs, President of the American Society
of Civil Engineers

Samuel T. Dana, Dean, School of Forestry and .
Conservation, énivarsity of HMichigan

Sidney D. -Weldon, Michigaen Automobile Associstion
and Packsrd Motor Company.

At a meeting of the Association on May 16, Mr, Earhart was
elscted president of this group.

After making a tour of the five eounties, in which he spoke
in every town, Doctor Curtis observed thst there was no par-

tieular enthusiam anywhere for the projeét, and no active
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‘opposition. However, audiences usually were in favor of a
Hetropolitan Anthority after the project had been thoroughly
sxplained to them,

Attitudes in the five counties were genersally as fellows:
Washtenaw County: An educational program has been carried |
on here for five vears, and it is gradually beginning to
soak in. Ann Arbor and Ypsilanti contain the msjority of
the county's population, and both of these cities are
strongly in favor of the project.

Livingston County: The rural group know little about the /f;
project. Livingston is in the best financial condition of |
- any of the five counties, and has most to gain and least to
pay.

Oakland County: This county is in a bad way financially.
Its Board of Supervisors voted against the bill, and sent & -
delegation to Lansing to oppos§ it in the Legislature¢l Others  ,
objected to the project as a real estate rackgt; { Probably o
because resl estate men in asll the counties were beginning
 to offer land for sale at high prices along the prospective

| course of the project.)

Macomb County: Mostly in favor, except pecple living in the
upper part of the county which is far from the Clinton River
and Lake 3t, Clair. The residanta.of St. Clair Shores oppose
the project because they do not wish & bathling beach in front 5; ‘

of their homes.
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= Yajne County: Labor class should represent a favorable ;
\ majority if the project is understood by it. The Negro / K
vote shoulidbe unanimous, since this class has much to zain
and little to pay. Poles own 15 private parks on the -
Clinton River, and these people may need soms strong per-
suasion to make them sympathetic toward the parkway plan.
The chief objection in Wayne County is that it is not Wayne
County's project, yet Wayne will have to pay for the facil-
ities to be 1oca£ed in the other édunties.
Later in the year a Jjoint WashtenawuLivingsten Speakers!?
Bureau was organized, and began functioning. This bureau
was made up of prominent c¢itizens of both counties, and the
kBureadb' funection was to serve asa:mouthpiece in spreading
‘the gospel ofia recreational system for the metropolitan
j area, Some of the more prominent speakers iﬁ the.Bureau
: were Senator EcCallum; Professor Whittemore, ﬁoétorfcurtis,_
" Dean ana;’P?ofessor Allen, Mr. McNamee, Mr. Stace, and
Mr. Gallup. These speakers were available for lectures and
talks to any groups; publie or semi-publie; and thus another
~important instrument ef'publicity was brought into use for
the further spreéd of information concerning the proposed
- recreational system, |
In November of this year the people of the five counties
went to the polls to deeide whether or not they wanted a

metropolitan district ereated. The approval of the people
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was gained by an almost two-to-one majority in each of the
five counties, and the promoting group% lang‘hard campaign

was ra@grded. Bow that the promotional pha;q of the Hurone
Clinton Metropolitan Authority was at an and; it would seem
logical to most that the Parkway Committes should disband,
relax their efforts, and sit back and watch thelr dream
materialize, Such an 1deavwas nct true, howeverj; after

the election, the Parkway Committee decided to kaey function-
ing, not so much in a promotionsl manner, but rather in a
sense of custodianship., It is true that the Authority would
engage engineers, draftsmen, land acquisition men, educational
directors, ete., but in &ll of the shuffle and details of build-
ing ihe system, the Committee did not want to see the basic
prineciples of the movement coverlooked. The Cormittee desired
tovreprasent'the people of the five counties, and with this
in mind, they decided to keep a watchful eye on the prbjéet
to see that it developed aleng sound lines, and to keep in
close touch with developments as the planning and actuel
construction progressed. This committee still exists at the
time of this writing, although it is nowhere near as strong

an organization 83 it was before the Authority was created.









The War Years 1941 ~1945

Commission appointed: The Act provided for a reprasenté?ive
from each of the five counties, and two additional members - . N
to be appointed by the Governor. Becsuse the County Boards
of Supervisors did not meet until the Spring of 1941 there
was a delay in the appointment of the commiséion (County
representatives on the commission were to be.appainted by The
County Boards). Finally, in ipril and May of 1941, The
County Beards began meeting and choosing their representatives.
Harry B. Barhart, president of the sponsoring group, snd one
of its most enthusiastic backers, was chosen for Washtenaw

b

“County; Oscar A, Kaufman, former corporation counsel for Wayne
Conhty was appointed by that county; Sidney D. Weldon, long
interested in parkways for the Detroit metropoliten area,
" was Oskland County's choice; R. Bruce HcPhers§£, of Howell,
who had been very influential in obtaining a favorable vote

in Livingston County, was named by that county; Macomb
County's representative became Joha H. Nunneley, a Mt. Clemens
attorney. The representatives approinted by Governor Murray.
D, Van Wagoner were G. Donald Ksnnédy, State Highway Com~-
missioner, and George W. Trendle, of Detroit.

| Shortly after the first meeting of the Board of Com=
» misaioaera; in May of 19&1; Wayne County's prosecuting
attorney gquestioned the legality of the Act that crested
the Autharity; and until this situation was clegred’up;

nothing eould be done in the way of organizing the Authority.
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The case was presented before the Michigan Supreme f v
Court, and on January 5, 19&2; a decision was handed down r
supporting the legality of the Act. Wwhile this legal con- )
 troversy was going on the United States went ;b war, and
progress on the project came to a virtual standstill for the
duration of hostilities.

Due to the criticsal shortage of materisls and labor,
little actual construction or improvement work could be done
while we were at wer., On the other hand, the Authority did
not go into hibernstion during this.perioé; but was actively
engaged in long range planning. One of the first things done
after the vaiidity of the Act was upheld, as described pre-
viously, was to obtain a staff of workers who would begin
making plans for the time when actual construction could be
begun. Most of the staff consisted of engineers, draftemen,
landscape architects and other technicians. Planning experts -
and consulting engineers were called in for technical advice;
and possible recreation area and parkway lod¢ations were
considered,

Authority suffers first reverse: One of the powers

granted to the Authority by the Enabling Act was the power of
land acquisition by gift, or puréhase throﬁgh condemnation or
negotiation, Much of the area that should be in public owner-
ship is now privately owned, and one of the Authority's prime

objectives is that of acquiring such land and converting it te

-
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‘its highest use - that of a highly diversified recreational
system for the metropolitean district of Detroit. Negotiation
for ;he purchase of lands is the mosat desirable means of

/ éeﬁnisition* excepting deeds of gift, but in some easeé where
this method fails, condemmation proceedings may have to be
instituted., In other ceses, neither method of acquisition

may be successful, and then plans must be either shelved, or
changed to it the next best solution to the problem. An
outstanding example of such a situation existed in the pro-
blem of the Belleville Lake area. This land is partly wooded,
| partly pgrassed, partly cultivated and partly growing wild;

an: artificisl leke, formed by s Detroit Edison hydro-eleftric
‘dam at French Landing; backs up the water of the Huron some
six miles westward to Rawsonville Road. A very wvaluable

ad junct to the park system would be mede if this land could
be acguired by the Authority; condemmation proc;edinga were
begun in Qctoﬁer of 1942, but property owners, in and around
the Bellevilla.Lake area, had other ideas concerning the dis-
position of their lands. The'csndemnation proceedings were
met with fierce resistance from the Belleville Lake Protective
Assoeciation, and the sbove-mentioned property owners and near-
by residents. This resistance was human, and the motives of
opposition were understandable -~ there was the attachment for
one's home; there was the desire for more money ( the price

offered by the Authority was too low); there was distaste for






having one's neighborhood "cluttered up® with visitors from
%ﬁﬁié ;arigwcf the five-county aras,

The campaign of re#iftance included personal proitesta=-
tions to parkway officials; circulation of petitions through-
out the neighborhood, and word-of-mouth gossip; maliciocus -
propagenda, and some genulne arguments; much misiafq:aatién,'

-and some facts.
¥hen the condemnation proceedings were first instituted,
 the pracéediags were dismissed by Circuit Judge Clyde I.
Webster. The State Supreme Court reversed Judge ¥Webster's
decision in an appeal from the Authority, and the case was
reopened after five weeds' deliberation. The Ciicuit Court
- Jury s#t @ price of $779,490 for;approxiaately 779 acres
for park pnrpasée. This was more than the Authority cared to
pay for the land, so Judge Webster was asked to dismiss pro-
ceedings on the Belleville Lake Project, and the préject was
- abandoned.
' ”kiﬁﬁough the war years were spent by the Authority mastly
on planning, some land acquisitions were being made, and the
most important additions made to the system during this
period were the sites for the proposed St. Clair Beach; Kent
Lake Psrk; and Marshbank Park. |

Ste Clair Beach
- 8. Clair'Beacb, which will be very s imilar to Jones
Beach of the Long Island State Perk System, is located at

Huron Point, about four miles southeast of Mt. Clemens, snd
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includes an area of 550 acres on lLake 3t. Clair., When pur=
chased, much of this land was submarginal for all uses but
muskrat and shore bird refuges; plans sre made for reclaime
ing the land by pumplng in sand from’the lake, and de?eloping

a very elaborate beach development on the site.

Kent Lake Park
Kent Lake Park (since renamed Xensington Metropolitan

Park), located a few miles east of Brighton on U. S, Highway
16, contains about 3600 acres. This park is ide#lly suited
for practically every type of outdoor recreation. The general
topography is rolling, with wooded billsides snd open meadows
covering the area not cccupied by the lske. During the war
the Authority obtained approximately 2600 acres of this area
by negotiation, and began condemnation proceedings to acguire

the remsinders

Marshbank Park

Marshbank Park, donated by ¥r. Howard Bloomer to the
Huron~Clinton Hetropolitan Autherity, is 115 acres in extent,
and the tract includes Mr. Bloomer's country home; This park
lies betwean Cass and Orchard Lakes, and has frontages on
both lakes; it will not be loined to the proposed parkway nete
work with a connecting drive, but may be reachsd by Michigan
Highway 218 out of Fontisc. The main recrestional festures

of this area will be piocmic grounds and playgrounds.
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Acgomplishments of the suthority from 1946 to the Present

Actual oonstructlion and improvement work on the project
got under way in 1946. With the wer ended, labor beceme -
plentiful, and coastruotion aaterials once more were avail-
able. Since the winter of 1345 the Authority has nads fine
progress, and though completion of the project is still far

in the Tuture, & commendable start has been made.

St. Cleir Beach
At St. Claly Beach, 97% of the f1ll required to raise

the elevation of the entire arsa and to construct the beach,

has been put in place. This represeants a tremsndous amount
of sand--1% has been computed to be an smount aqﬁal to a

pille 2,3 miles high on a 50 x 150 lot. A water main, to
farnish water to the St. Clair Beaoh project, has been laid
from the Mt. Clemens Water ¥Works systea. Aéahitestural and
engineering plans for ths beach walk, bath house and restau-~
rent are practically ocompleted at the time of this writing,
and plans for the sewage plant, parking arsas, service roads
and other utilities are in progress. It is expected that
contracts for the conatruction of the beach walk, bath house
end reaiaarant will be let in 1948. If the prssent consiruc-
16# schedule can be maintained it 18 expscted that the beach,
together with its necessary structures and services, will be
ready for public use in 1950.
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Kensington Metropolitan Park

A great deal of development has besn éade at Kensington
Ketropolitan Park since 1946. COriginally this park contained
8 laks of but sixty acres, but with the construction of &
dam seross the Huron River south of Grand River road the Lake
has daepénad 13 feet in the process. BRefore raising'the
.level of the lake extensive clearing operations, arocund the
edge of the lake, were carried out. This was done to avoid
an unsightly shore line marred with dead snags, and to mini-
mize dangerous underwater obstacles for boats and cences.
At preseat Keat Lake 18 the second largest lake in the area,
and boasts a shoreline of 22 miles in public ownership.

Kensington Park was first cpened to limited public use
in 1947. A few picnic areas have been selected and cleared
for use, and minimum drinking water and toilet facilities
have been provided; two bathing beasches have been construg-

ted; foot and bridle treils are being constructed at present,

with two underpassses to separate these tralls from automobile
traffic on the main roads. At the tims of this writing approxi-
mately 16 miies of roads are neérly completed within the park,
and a new and larger bridge has re§lécaﬁ the o0ld narrow bridge
at the north end of the park where Buno Road crosses the upper
end of the lake. The State Highway Department began raising
and widening Grand River Road at the Huron River in 1946,

and at present this work is practically completed. This pro-
jeot ineludes the eonstrubmion of & higher and wider bridge
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st this point; this permits all trails, cances and boats
- to go under U.S. 16, thus doing away with what had formerly

been a dangerous portage and crossing.

Marshbank Metropolitan Park
¥arshbank- Fark development, to dste, has been rather

sketchy. DBecause of the character and planned use of this
park for chiefly picnicking and génsral pley, it has been
planned to limit development to tree planting, parking
facilities, entrance drive and plenic areas. The park is
not yet open for public use, but it will probably be ready
for recrestional enjoyment of the public by 1949.

lower Huron Fark and Parkway - Kiskadden Trget.

This area, nearly 1000 acres in extent, has been acquired

by the Authority since the war, At present it is undeveloped,
with the exception of & few marked trails, a parking space
off of Hannan Road, and a suspension foot bridge. This bridge,
crossing the river, is very picturesque, and gives access to
the main part of the area from the parking area.

In guaaral; the Kiskadden Tract is quite wild, and its.
charm lies in its natural untouched appearance. Here there
are wooded hill sides, some small streams, open meadowe,
snd scenic views from a few pointa 2long the river at the
north end of the area.

A1l of this unit is within Wayne County, halfway between

New Boston and French Landing, and is within eaay reach of
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the downriver communities and Detroit. Although there are
'no facilities. at present, other than those previously de-
scribed, plans have been corpleted for the construction of
pieniec and playlield sreas; drives and psrking sress; and )
water supply and sanitary facilities. It is planned on | é\n
opening the area for full use in 1949, |

Dexter-Huron Metropolitan Park
To date, this park is the first acquisition on the Huron

River between Belleville and Kensington Metropolltan Fark.
Dexter-Huron Park has existed since pre-Authority days, and
has been operatéd and maintsined by the Washtenaw County Road
Caﬁmissian uadar lesse from the Ford Motor Company. Little
improvement or new construction is required in this area, as
the park is already equipped with picnic tablss, outdoor fire-
places, sanitsry faciltities and other utilities.ﬁ4P1ans have
been made for some improvement of the picnic are=as, roads and
'parking facilities, and new tables and beﬁehea are.being
added, This park is being fully used at the present time, and
until it is incorporated intc the genéral Parkway plan, it
will continue to be under the superviasion of the Washtenaw

County Road Commission.

Parkways and Connecting Drives
The master Parkwsr plan of the Authority calls for a

parkway within the valleys of the Huron and Clinton rivers.
The main parkway will begin at the mouty of the Huron at Lake

Erie, follow the Hyron to its headwaters, across the chain of
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lakes to the headwaters of the Clinten, and down that river
to the terminus at 3t, Clair Besch, This means a parkway
approximately 158 miles in length, and with a right-of-way
330 feet wide, &,500 acres of land will have to be acquired.
However, 41 miles of this runs through State Recreational
lands, and the State will provide the right-of-way in these
sreas; therefore the Authority must purchase only about
117 miles of right-of -way lénds. |

& very small proportion of actual roadway has been comw
pleted; at the St. Clair Beach projeect, a 4.4 miles from
Gratiot Avenue to the beach is now under constructien; withivN
Kensington Park 4.5 miles of parkway have bean graded and
surfacing is being done at this writing. The L.5 mile |
stretch mentioned haéa is part of the Huron~Clinton Barkwayj
| ia.adﬁitian to this |16 miles of park drives within Kensington
Park are almoat completed. No other parkway or connecting
~drive construetion is under way, élthough detailed plans
have already been drawn up for such construction through
lands slready acquired, and for lands "earmarked" for future 7

acquisition.

Land Acquisition
The lands acquired so far by the Authority total approxie

mately 4865 acres. Of this area, 115 acres (Marshbank Park}A

were a gift of Mr« Howard Bloomer. The romainder were purchased;
3,600 acres for Kensington Metropolitan Fark; 400 acres for the

Kiskadden Tract:; 550 acres for S5t. Clair Beach; andrzﬂﬂ acres



«Ibgwﬂexter-suren Park. A few other parcels of unknown sisze
have also been aeqﬁirc@ throughout the metropolitan district.
An addition to Kensington Park will be 1500 acres of land

- vetween the north end of the park and the Ford property ﬁtix_
Milford. This land i3 all along the Huron River, and abuts
on the park. The Authority proposes to acquire this additién
as soon as posaible. .

| The State is helping the Adtherity in its land acquisi-
tion program by means of a special zppropristion of one
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) which was granted by the
legislature in 1944, These funds are to be matched by the

| Authority, and are to be availlable between July 1, 1945,

and June 30, 1949. |

The Future

A promising begimning has been made by the Huron~
Clinton Ebtrepelitan Autherity, and much has yet to be done.
It will take years before the project will be anywhere near
completed; a tremendous land aequisition progrem is tenta-
tively planned and all will not be smooth sailing, as mani-
- £ested previously in the Belleville lLake acquisitiaﬁ attempt.
Undoubtedly the Authority will be confronted by many similar
stumbling blocks before the system iz completed.

Present plans of theAAutharity will probably have to be
changed from time to time to fit changing conceptions; perhaps

when the parkway-plavground system is finished, it may retain

only a slight semblance of the recrestional system dreamed of
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by Curtis, Whittemors, Dana, and the other ploneers ye&rs
before. The Authority is a modern, streamlined organisation;
and it is taken for granted that it will keep its planning
program flexible., Keen foresight will be needed, and no
poasibilities for improvement should be overlocked.

Perhaps, in its eagerness to produce something tangible
in the form of parkways, parks apnd other recreational features,
some of the more bagic ideas of the project will be over-
shadowed. The project is for the recreational enjoyment of
the people - all of the people, young and old allke. It is-
just as important to have hiking trails, canos trails, youth
hostels and camping areas for the younger gensration as it is
to have velvet-smooth parkways and limited access highwgys
for the older people. Recreational features should be de-
eentralizad insofaé,as possible, in ordsr that people through-
out the area will have as ahort a éistance as possible to go
for their recreation., The little people, as well as the big,
should be considered, but selfish interests and politics may
exert a detrimental influence.

A complets locp may be made of the system some day,
after present glahs and construction are completed., This will
involve a shore front drive for Detroit along Lake St. Clair
from St. Clair Beach, out into the Detroit River on "made"
land, along the lower river to Grosse lIsle, and then along &
chain of "made® islands to the mouth of the Huron River. This

would be a very expensive undertaking, and it probably will
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not be done in the near future.

Man is essentially an outdoor animal., Until compar-
atively recent times, he has always been found in an open
country enviéanment, and such an environment smust be main-

'ﬁained for the benefit of all‘ ¥hen the recreational sysngﬁ‘“
of the Detroit metropolitan area is completed, the peaple of .
thlis area will probably benefit from it in many ways; the
people will better be able to maintain good health and
physicsal. condition when they are sble to get more sunshine
and fresh air; city life, with its many ugly structures and
smoke~filled air, has taken the plaece of winding pabhs and
roads through woods and fields « aany people have almost
forgottan of the beauty of forest and field. The Authority
will provide areas wherein these almost-forgotten gifts of
nature will be availaﬁ?e for the benefit and recreationsl
en joyment of all,





















67

Bibliography
Anonymous. %gﬁﬂ Valley Guide, Unpublished manuseript, School
rchitecture end Design, University o ﬁichigan,

undated.

Anonymous. Unpublished, untitled msnuscript containing .
miscellaneous materisl pertaining to sponsoring T
group's activities., School of Architecture snd
Degign, University of Michigan, undated.

Clarke, Peter D. (rig 8 >
and Sketches ojli!!ﬁ?lﬁ!ian r_bes of

Hunter, P Toronto,
Martin, Paul S.; Guimby, Oeorge I.; and Collier, Donald. zgggggg
before 5clg§§g§, University of Chicago Press, 1947.

Burton, Clarence Monroe. BHarly Detroit, Wayne County Abstract
Gffice, 1909. . ’

Burton, Clarence Monroce. ¥:
of Michisan. Wayne

Curtis, Henry S. | Lure of the River, 4merican Forests, 1936.

Curtis,‘ﬁenry 5.

0 ys of Li_tle Rivers., American
?OPSS'ES, 103 > ¥ x ‘

Curtis, Henry S.

Civic Comment, aNe~ PAT. 1 37s V 3  0.1; PF. 31-32

Whittemore, Harlow Ulin. The Prop : dnte .
Reprint from The F 18] y Heview,
Vol. ZLIV, No. 19, ﬁpril 23 1938.

Weir, L. d. Parks. Hew York: A. S, Barnes «nd Company, 1928,

Butler, George U. Recreation Areag, Their Design and o
Kew §ork: Aa .rnes and Company,



63

Bibliography (cont.)

Michigan Conservation Commission Report. A Pro ram to Provide
Recreatzon Areas An_Southeastern & :

The Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority. 1942 Annual Report
of the Board o mmissioners. Detroit, Michigan. -

The Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority. Third Biennisal Report
‘ ‘ of issi Jecember 31, 1947.



.3 9015 00327 1569

THE UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN V{/

DATE DUE










